Questions/Answers for CBP

Solicitation Number: HSBP1008R1618

General

1.  Request for extension.  ANSWER:  Granted; new closing date is 25 Aug 2008.
2.  What is the anticipated start date after the award?  ANSWER:  45-60 days after contract award.
3.  The RFP is not clear on the matter of where the EAP offices, i.e., the program management and operations offices shall be located during the contract life cycle. Does CBP prefer the successful bidder to establish its EAP offices onsite at CBP, or away from the federal site using secure, leased commercial office space?  ANSWER:  While we may provide counseling space in the health unit or alternate location, CBP will not provide any administrative office space.

4.  There are no guidelines provided in RFP Section L or elsewhere in the RFP stating that each SOW line item requires a response by the responding EAP services bidder.  Does CBP desire the each SOW requirement have a response for inclusion in a submitted proposal?  ANSWER:  Section L.6.B – Volume II – Technical Proposal provides detailed instructions for preparing the technical proposal.  M.1 – Evaluation Criteria provides explanation of the evaluation criteria. 
5.  Are you able to provide if solicitation number HSBP1008R1618 is a follow on to any current contracts?  ANSWER:  This is not a follow-on contract; these services are currently provides via several contract vehicles. 

Description/Specification/Work Statement

C.2    Indicates that “CBP reserves the right to add services under this contract for other specified employees and their eligible family members under DHS shared services agreement between CBP, USCIS and ICE.” 

          1: In the event CBP exercises the right to add services can you provide us with the number of employees that would be covered for each agency? Could you also provide the utilization statistics for each of these agencies currently serviced by FOH. There are no immediate plans to include ICE and CIS under this contract.  ANSWER:  Currently the combined population of ICE and CIS is nearly 30,000 employees.  The FOH utilization rate for ICE and CIS is not relevant to this solicitation.

         2: Can you also provide the work locations and the number of personnel assigned to those locations for USCIS and ICE?  ANSWER:  We would want to be prepared and insure that there were EAP counselors at all of their locations in the event they are added to this contract.  Again, there are no immediate plans to include ICE and CIS under this contract.  A vendor with the capability of providing a nationwide network to serve all of CBP as required in this SOW should be able to service ICE and CIS.

C.3   Please provide clarification of the paragraph “CBP personnel may provide any and all services requested of the contractor under this statement of work (SOW).  ANSWER:  Performance of these duties and services by CBP personnel shall not be construed as in conflict with the contractor’s performance.” It is likely and foreseeable that an actual or perceived conflict of interest could easily arise when any CBP personnel may provide any and all services.  The intent of this paragraph was not to infer that CBP personnel will be providing individual counseling services.   CBP personnel may provide training instead of using the EAP, for example they may conduct EAP Orientation or Peer Support training. Additionally, the CBP personnel may provide on-site services, in conjunction with the EAP, to major critical incidents, i.e. Hurricane Katrina.  

C.4

1.  Does the RFP only apply to employees in the OBP?  ANSWER:  No – it covers all CBP employees
2.  If not, will this EAP cover all 50000 CBP employees? ANSWER:  Yes
a. If all 50,000 employees are covered under this awarded contract, will they all transition at once or in phases?  ANSWER:  All at once
C.7.12   Can you provide the estimated number of EAP Deputy Administrators and COTR that the contractor will be working with under this contract?  ANSWER:  There will be one COTR and no more than three Deputy Administrators.
C.7.13  Concerning the matter of services to family members, the upper age limit for dependent children of the employee is stated. However, the lower age limit, if any, for dependent children is not addressed. Toddlers and younger children are not appropriate for EAP short term problem resolution counseling within the EAP, other than assessment within the family unit, education for the caretakers or referral. The EAP service is limited in scope and length. It would be inappropriate, and possibly harmful, to form a therapeutic relationship with a child and then have to arbitrarily end that relationship.

Please clarify if there is or is not an intended age limit relevant to eligibility requirements to receive EAP counseling. What, if any, problem areas would be eligible for EAP short term counseling when a child is “the client”?  ANSWER:  We have not set an arbitrary lower age limit.  We defer to the professional judgment and standard/ethics of the contractor as to the circumstances (e.g. within the family unit) under which appropriate EAP services will be provided for a toddler or younger child presenting with a need.  In cases of toddlers and younger child, we would expect that in most cases (if not all) the client would be the parent or legal guardian.  Additionally, we expect that an employee or a family member (including a minor child), requesting services for an eligible minor child would not be denied services or automatically redirected to the outside services based solely on age; rather appropriate EAP assessment and short-term counseling/or referral services will be  provided.   

C.7.23   Are trauma and training sessions considered activities that will be factored into the utilization rate?  ANSWER:  No.  The utilization rate refers to the number of employees receiving individual counseling services such as assessments, referrals, and counseling sessions.  We expect a report that details the number events (trauma sessions, trainings, orientations) and the number of attendees.  These numbers should not be calculated into the utilization rate.

C.8  Please clarify the meaning of the statement, “travel time from the office(s) they are to serve.” Does this mean from the EAP office, the affiliate provider’s office, the distance from their home to the office, or air travel for onsite services? ANSWER:  We expect the contractor to have a network of counselors available in all CBP locations.  We do not expect that counselors will travel by air from a central hub, but rather from closest location to the CBP office. Distance from their office to the local CBP office that they serve.

C.11.3.a  The CEAP is the professional credential of the Employee Assistance field. Counseling provided by an EAP must recognize this important credential. Please add that possession of the CEAP credential also qualifies the counselor to provide short term problem-resolution EAP counseling. ANSWER:  No, all counselors must meet requirements in C.11.3 of the SOW.
C.12  What have been the past three year’s utilization rates?  ANSWER:  3-5%
C.12.2  The third subparagraph as it is written, “Within two (2) weeks of a client’s referral to a community resource, the client will be contacted ……the resource. The results of these 14 day call backs shall be noted in the client’s record”  This paragraph ends with “If clinically appropriate and acceptable to the client, and if a signed authorization to use or disclose is obtained, follow-up with the referral resource by the contractor will be encouraged.”

Discussion: Once the EAP Counselor refers a client to a community resource the counselor-client relationship ends and the EAP Counselor can not contact the individual regarding his or her relationship with the new provider without a signed consent authorizing the EAP Counselor to make such contact. Since the third paragraph, as it is written, requires the contractor to violate confidentiality we recommend the third paragraph be modified to read as follows. 

“If clinically appropriate and acceptable to the client, and if a signed authorization to use or disclose is obtained, the contractor will contact the referred client within two (2) weeks of a client’s referral to a community resource, the client will be contacted to confirm the client has been linked successfully to the resource. If the client has not been successfully linked and desires additional EAP services, the contractor will provide another referral to the client. The results of these 14 day call backs shall be noted in the client’s record. The contractor is also encouraged to obtain permission to follow-up with the referral resource and with the client after he or she is released by the community resource.”

ANSWER:  We expect these fourteen day call backs to be part of the contractor’s case management protocol.  The call back is verification that the referral was a success, or whether the client was unhappy or unable to make an appointment and required further assistance or another referral.   

These call backs are not an invasion of the client’s confidentiality, as the contractor will be contacting only the client.  The client does not need to sign a release to allow the contractor to contact the client.   A release is required if the contractor is contacting somebody other than the client to discuss the client.  
C.12.2.c  Please clarify the meaning of “to use” in the sentence, “If clinically appropriate and acceptable to the client, and if a signed authorization to use or disclose is obtained, follow-up with the referral resource by the contractor will be encouraged.”  ANSWER:  Follow up by the EAP counselor with the outside provider will be allowed if the client allows the EAP counselor to contact that provider and allows that outside provider to disclose information about their treatment to the EAP counselor.

C.12.2.f

1. How many substance abuse cases are anticipated?  ANSWER:  The annual average is 50
2.    How many of the employees referred in the last five years had second chance agreements?

ANSWER:  Please refer to Q1.  We do not track these cases separately, and would expect the follow-up/case management to be the same (except for the management consultations) whether these clients are self-referred, or referred as part of a last chance agreement.  

3.  In regard to Substance Abuse Case Management Services there is a reference to the “employee’s treatment record.” Treatment is outside the scope of EAP work and EAP should not be keeping treatment records.  Please clarify what is meant by “documentation shall be included within the employee’s treatment record”. A second issue is the “The Contractor will provide substance abuse aftercare services.” Aftercare is a treatment issue. EAP provides additional services in support of sobriety and relapse prevention efforts, make referrals to aftercare programs, but they do not directly provide aftercare programs.  ANSWER:  The SOW calls for the contractor refer the employee to the “appropriate community treatment program” and then calls for the EAP to ensure that the client is admitted and to monitor their progress in treatment.   A client’s choice to not continue in a treatment program will be documented in the EAP record.

As part of the contractor’s case management, the contractor is expected to monitor aftercare provided by the clinician and to follow up with clients who have successfully completed treatment as stated in paragraph four of the above reference.

C.12.3.a    
1)  In regards to Peer Support Members, is the EAP expected to develop the group or support an already existing network?  ANSWER:  Peer Support is an existing network – and the EAP will provide consultation services and training.  Additionally, EAP counselors will work with the Peer Support Members during critical incident response.

2)  Referencing “the contractor will actively work with those entities to fully understand the environment within each CBP office and field offices.” Does this apply to traveling to duty stations overseas, e.g., Iraq and other countries where CBP officers are deployed?  ANSWER:  The contractor would be expected to familiarize themselves with all CBP offices, including overseas office locations.  They wouldn’t be expected to travel to Iraq, but certainly should be aware that CBP personnel are deployed there and should understand and be prepared to address the issues that this raises.

C.12.3.c    What is meant by “instructing the manager in alternative supervisory practices.”? What are alternative supervisory practices? Could this inadvertently create a liable situation for the supervisor and agency?  ANSWER:  Alternative solutions to what is not working for them currently.

C.12.3.d    “The Contractor shall establish a case file for each management consultation.” Employees have the right to see and receive case files pertaining to them. Managers are uncomfortable consulting with the EAP when they know that their statements, concerns and opinions are kept in the record. This type of case file/record is not addressed under confidentiality regulations. Please clarify the goals of this requirement and the extent to which they are protected.  ANSWER:  There should be some form of record kept on any management consultations that would include brief notes of the contact, including any recommendations given.  

C.12.3.e     “If there is a consultative activity request that is outside the scope of the EAP, the contractor will refer the requests to the COTR.”  Is the EAP allowed to refer the requester directly to the proper office; i.e., L/ER, EEO, ICC, DFWP, etc?  ANSWER:  This refers to requests for EAP services that require expending funds that are not clearly within scope that are referred to the COTR for approval/disapproval.  If a truly misdirected call comes in to the EAP line, and the EAP cannot provide assistance, referral back to internal agency resources would be appropriate.

C.12.4.b    On-site critical incidents are listed as events.  
     1)  On average how many hours are spent on-site for each event?  ANSWER:  On average 4-
6 hours
2) How many critical event hours were used in the previous calendar year?  ANSWER:  Average CISD hours per year is 600 hours 

C.12.4.f     1)  How many counselors are needed in D.C. for Police Week activities?

a. What types of services will they be expected to provide?  ANSWER:  Generally only one EAP counselor is required for the week.

The EAP counselor will provide supportive services to the family members of agents 
honored at the ceremony and consultation services to peer support member who 
assist the families.  Additionally, two debriefings will be held – one for the family 
members and one for the Police Week Support Team (Peer support members and 
Chaplains).  

2)  Refers to critical incident response “as stated in 4.2 above”  Can you please tell us 

where we can find the referenced paragraph (4.2)? ANSWER:  Correction: 12.4.c
C.12.4.h      Please provide clarification of when and under what circumstances the EAP Administrator or 

       affected component's Deputy Administrator would disapprove of a counselor qualified to 

       provide CISM and as provided by CBP's EAP services contractor.  In the event of a 

       disapproved counselor, what process(s) would be implemented to select and propose an  

       alternate counselor?  ANSWER:  CBP will retain final approval of all EAP counselors used for 
       critical incident response.  This is ensure that the EAP uses counselors who have experience   

       in responding to law enforcement critical incidents and that they have the qualifications as 

       stated in C.12.4.c.   If CBP disapproves the EAP’s proposed counselor for a CISM response, 

       the Deputy EAP Administrator will state the reason and request a replacement that has the 

       necessary experience.  
C.12.5.c      
1)  What are the total number of hours needed for new employee orientation and new supervisory training?  Are the 350 annual training hours listed in addition to the 200 new employee orientations or a combined amount?  ANSWER:  The 350 hours are our estimated required supervisory orientation and the 200 hours are our estimated new employee training - they are separate amounts.  

a. How many hours were used in the previous calendar year for new employee orientation?

b. How many hours were used in the previous calendar year for new supervisory training?

ANSWER:  Please use the estimated number provided above in calculating your cost for providing orientations to supervisors and employees.  We have more than one contract that provide these services and they are not tracked in the same manner.  
2)  This paragraph requires the contractor to offer and deliver thirty minute (30) EAP Orientations as requested and scheduled in CBP locations.  In order for the contractor to determine the estimated cost of delivering thirty minute (30) presentations throughout CBP it would help to have an estimated number of orientations that are likely to be requested each year from all work locations?  ANSWER:  As stated in 12.5.c; For new employees “CBP anticipates up to 200 hours of new employee EAP orientation annually” For new supervisors “Total annual training hours are anticipated to be 350.”

C.12.5.d      In order for the contractor to determine the estimated cost of delivering forty five to ninety 

       (45-90) minute per session training and briefing presentations it would help to have the 

       number of trainings and briefings required each year in all work locations with 30   

       participants?   ANSWER:  Approximately 50 hours

C.12.6       In what locations will specialized training be held?  Will all trainings be at the 20 field operations offices or will they be in remote locations? ANSWER:  Generally, training will be held at the field operations offices or sector locations, but occasionally, the training will be held in a remote location.  

a.   How many hours were used in the previous calendar year for specialized training?       
      ANSWER:  3,240                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

C.12.7        How many health and wellness events are expected annually?  ANSWER:  We would like to 
                   see at least one health and wellness event take place in each of our larger field office 
                   locations (see listing below).  

a. How many hours were used in the previous calendar year for health and wellness?
ANSWER:  We currently have more than one contract that provides these services and they are not tracked in the same manner.
C.12.7.a

1)  “The contractor will refer requests for services outside of the routine health and 

wellness presentations to the COTR.” Please clarify what   presentation topics are 

considered “outside of the routine health and wellness presentations.”  ANSWER:    

Requests for specialized training that are not routinely provided by the contractor.

2)  Please provide the number of health and wellness presentations required each year. 

This will allow the contractor to determine the estimated cost of delivering these 

presentations?  ANSWER:  We would like to see at least one health and wellness events 
take place in each of our larger field office and sector locations (see listing below).  

C.12.7.b     How many hours of alternative delivery methods are anticipated in replacement of on-site 
                   activities?


a. How many hours of alternative methods were used in the previous calendar year?  ANSWER:  CBP does not track this information
b. For what activities are alternative methods allowed?  ANSWER:  Health and wellness, some standardized training, employee orientations

C.12.7.d     Are promotional materials submitted electronically and/or does CBP want to receive a supply of printed materials for distribution? ANSWER:  CBP would like electronic promotional materials that we can brand and customize to meet our needs.  We will print and distribute our own promotional materials.  

C.12.8.a.ii  “These surveys shall be built into the clinical process so they are offered to every client during the intake process.” Please confirm that the client is given the survey at time of intake rather than at time of completion of services.  ANSWER:  Clients may discontinue service after intake so it makes sense to give the client the survey at this point in the contact.  

C.12.9        Please clarify what is meant by “including case numbers that were denied.”  ANSWER:  Clients who contact the EAP and are not offered EAP services.  
C.12.10.c   What video tape is being referred to in “shall show the employees the orientation videotape during the presentation.”  Is the contractor expected to make a videotape as stated in Task 12?  ANSWER:  The contractor should have a multi-media presentation that can be posted to CBP’s intranet as an EAP orientation for those who may not be able to attend an orientation session.

Task 10      This paragraph requires the contractor to initiate sixty (60) minute orientation presentations to CBP Headquarters, each CBP Sector and Field Office within thirty (30) calendar days after the effective date of the contract.

                   1)  Are the sixty (60) minute orientation presentations required in Task 10 different than the thirty (30) minute orientation presentations required in Paragraph C.12.5.c.?  ANSWER:  Yes, these presentations are the initial contact that the contractor will make with the agency to introduce their services to the agency.  

                   2)  Is the contractor expected to produce a orientation videotape within 30 days after the effective date of the contract or does CBP have an existing orientation videotape?  ANSWER:  CBP does not have an existing EAP orientation video tape.  We would like the contractor to have a multi-media presentation that can be posted to CBP’s intranet as an EAP orientation for those who may not be able to attend an orientation session.

Larger locations (includes Sector offices)

Blaine

               New Orleans

Rio Grande                    Spokane

Laredo                           Havre

Del Rio                          Grand Forks                     
Marfa                             Detroit

El Paso                          Buffalo

Tucson                           Swanton

Yuma                             Houlton

El Centro                       Miami    
San Diego

Field Offices
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Seattle


New Orleans
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Tucson
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San Diego
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Los Angles

San Francisco



1

